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Audited Financial Statements 2010/11
Introduction

The purpose of this report is to present the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31st March, 2011. A copy of the audited accounts is appended to this
report (Appendix 1), together with Audit Scotland’s Report to Those Charged with
Governance on the 2010/11 Audit (Appendix 2).

Main Report

Audit Scotland, the Partnership’s auditor, has concluded the audit of the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2011. There are no qualifications to the
audit certificate which appears on pages 48 and 49 of the accounts. The
Auditor’s opinion states that the financial statements present a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Partnership as at 31st March 2011 and its income
and expenditure for the year then ended.

The Foreword by the Treasurer on pages 7 to 9 of the accounts highlights key
aspects of financial performance during the year.

The audited financial statements were considered at the Performance and Audit
Committee meeting of 30" September 2011, together with the Audit Scotland
report to Those Charged with Governance on the 2010/11 Audit. The Chair of
the Performance and Audit Committee will have an opportunity to report to the
Board on any issue arising from the Performance and Audit Committee’s
consideration of the items.

Recommendations

It is recommended that the Partnership consider the audited accounts and the
Auditor's opinion in the audit certificate to the accounts.

KAREN KELLY
Treasurer
6th October 2011

Appendices 1 - Audited Financial Statements 2010/2011

2(a) - Report to Those Charged with Governance on the 2010/11
Audit
2(b) — Letter of Representation

Contact/tel lain Shaw, Tel: 0131 469 3117

(iain.shaw@edinburgh.gov.uk)
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2010/11

1. Scope of Responsibility

The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership’s aim is to develop a transportation system for South East
Scotland, as outfined in the Partnership's Regional Transport Strategy 2008 - 2023.

The Partnership is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law and
appropriate standards, that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically,
efficiently, effectively and ethically. The Partnership also has a duty to make arrangements to secure continuous
improvement in the way its functions are carried out,

In discharging these overall responsibilities, Elected Members and Senior Officers are responsible for
implementing proper arrangements for the governance of the Partnership’s affairs, and facilitating the effective
exercise of its functions, including arrangements for management of risk.

The Partnership has approved and adopted a Local Code of Corporate Governance which is consistent with
appropriate corporate governance principles and is supported by detailed evidence of compliance, which is
regularly reviewed.

This statement explains how the Partnership delivers good governance and reviews the effectiveness of these
arrangements. It also includes a statement on internal financial control in accordance with proper practice.

2. The Partnership’s Governance Framework

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, by which the
Partnership is directed and controlled, and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with and influences
the community. It enables the Partnership to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider
whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services. The framework reflects
the arrangements in place to meet the six supporting principles of effective corporate governance.

@ Focusing on the purpose of the Partnership and on outcomes for the community, and creating and
implementing a vision for the local area;

e Members and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly defined functions
and roles;

e Promoting values for the Partnership and demonstrating the values of good governance through
uphalding high standards of conduct and behaviour;

@ Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny and managing risk;
¢ Developing the capacity and capability of members and officers to be effective;
e Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public accountability.

A significant part of the governance framework is the system of internal control which is based on an ongoing
process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Partnership’s policies, aims and
objectives. These are defined in the Partnership’s 2008/9 — 2010/11 Business Plan, which is updated annually.
This will enable the Partnership to manage its key risks efficiently, effectively, economically and ethically. While
the system of internal control is designed to manage risk at a reasonabie level it cannot eliminate alf risk of failure
to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
of effectiveness.
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2010/11 (contd.)

Within the overall control arrangements the system of internal financial control is intended to ensure that assets
are safeguarded, transactions are authorised and properly recorded, and material errors or irregularities are
either prevented or would be detected within a timely period. It is based on a framework of regular
management information, financial regulations, administrative pracedures and management supervision,

Determining the Partnership’s purpose, its vision for the local area and intended outcomes for the
Community

The Partnership aims to develop a transportation system for South East Scotland which will enable business to
function effectively and provide everyone living in the Region with improved access to health care, education,
public services and employment opportunities. The vision for achieving this is outlined in the Regional Transport
Strategy.

The Business Plan defines how to implement the aims of this strategy and the Annual Report provides a report
of performance against objectives, targets and performance indicators as outlined in the Regional Transport
Strategy.

Review of Effectiveness

The Partnership has put in place arrangements, detailed in the Local Code, for monitoring each element of the
framewaork and providing evidence of compliance. A Principal Officer within the Partnership has been
nominated to review the effectiveness of the Local Code and will report annually to the Partnership Board.

The review of the effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal financial control is
informed by:

e the work of the Internal Auditors and the Chief Internal Auditor’s Annual Assurance Statement on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Partnership’s system of internal financial control;

® the Partnership Director's Certificate of Assurance on internal control;

® the operation and monitoring of controls by Partnership managers;

e the External Auditors in their Annual Audit Letter and other reports; and
e otherinspection agencies commenis and reports.

Through the year Elected Members and Officers have responsibility for the development and maintenance of
the governance environment. These review mechanisms include:

o The Partnership Board provides strategic leadership, determines policy afms and objectives and takes
executive decisions not delegated to officers. it provides political accountability for the Partnership’s
performance.

e The Performance and Audit Committee demonstrates the Partnership’s commitment to the principles of
good governance. It scrutinises the running of the Partnership and suggests improvements,
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2010/11 (contd.)

4, Review of Effectiveness {continued)

Internal Audit provides an independent and objective assurance service to the Partnership by completing a
programme of reviews throughout the year, to provide an opinion on the internal control, risk management
and governance arrangements of South East of Scatland Transport Partnership.

s Audit Scotland’s Annual Audit Report is considered by the Partnership Board and the Performance and Audit
Committee along with the output from other external audiis and inspections.

e The Risk Management System requires that risks are regularly reviewed by the Performance and Audit
Committee and the Board. This ensures that actions are taken to effectively manage the Parinership’s highest
risks. Now included are individual project risks.

o The Legal Officer is responsible to the Partnership for ensuring that agreed procedures are followed
and that all applicable statutes and regulations are complied with.

5. Certification
In compliance with accounting practice, the Treasurer has provided the Partnership Director with a statement on

the adequacy and effectiveness of the Partnership’s internal financial control system for the year ended 31"
March 2011. [tis the Treasurer's opinion that reasonable assurance can be placed upon the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Partnership’s internal control system.

During the year, the Chief Internal Auditor reviewed changes to the current corporate governance arrangements
and systems of internal control and his findings are included in the Chief Internal Auditor’s Annual Report.

From this year's review there is evidence that the Code is operating effectively with overall compliance by the
Partnership in all significant areas of its corporate governance arrangements.

Chair of Partnership
N
Board: RUSSELL IMRIE W DATE 32| s| g

Partnership Director:  ALEX MACAULAY &% W DATE RI{S]If

— 6

Treasurer: DONALD MCGOUGAN %} . \L—ﬂ-‘&ou&s———' DATE "),..‘ L t ii

o
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

REMUNERATION REPORT

1. Remuneration Policy for Senior Employees

The Partnership's Board determines initfal remuneration for the senior employees with reference to the level of respansibility of the post.
The Partnership does not operate a Remuneration Committee.

Annual inflationary increases are based on those agreed hy the Scottish Joint Negotiating Committee for Chief Officials of Local
Authaorities {Scotland).

2. Remuneration for Senior Councillors

The Partnership does not provide any remuneration to seniar cou n¢illors.

Expenses paid to Board members are detailed in note 18 to the financial statements.

3. Management of Remuneration Arrangements

The remuneration of the Partnership's employees is managed by the City of Edinburgh Council's Finance Department, as part of a
service level agreement with the Partnership.

4. Officers Remuneration

The numbers of employees whose remuneration during the year exceeded £50,000 were s follows:

Remuneration Bands 2010/11 2009/10
£50,000 - £54,999 1 0
£80,000 - £84,599 o 1
£85,000 - £89,999 i 0

5. Senior Employees Remuneration

The remuneration paid to the Partnership's senior employee is as follows:

Salary, Fees Total Total

and Remuneration Remuneration

Allowances 2010/21 2009/10

Name and Post Title £'000 £000 £'000

Alex Macaulay ~ 87 87 85
Partnership Director

87 87 85

The senior employee in the above table has responsibility for management of the Partnership to the extent that he has power to
direct or controt the major activities of the Partnership {including activities invalving the expenditure of money), during the year to which
the Report relates, whether solely or collectively with other persons,

6. Senior Employees Pension Entitlement

The pension entitlement of the Partnership's senior employee is as follows:
Accrued pension benefits

In-year pension contributions As at Difference from

2010/11 2009/10 31 March 2011 31 March 2010

Name and Post Title £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Alex Macaulay - 18 17 Pensicon 6 2
Partnership Director Lump Sum 9 0
18 17 15 2

The senior employee shown in table above is a member of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

REMUNERATION REPORT (contd.)

6. Senior Employees Pension Entitlement (cont'd.)

THE LGPS is a final salary pension scheme.
This means that pension benefits are based on the final year's pay and the number of years that person has beena member of the scheme.

The scheme's normal retirement age for employees is 65,

From 1 April 2009 a five tier contribution system was introduced with contributions from scheme members being based on how
much pay fails into each tier. This is designed to Bive more equality between the cost and benefits of scheme membership. Prior
to 2009 contribution rates were set at 6% for all non manual employees.

The tiers and mermbers contributions rates for 2010-11 remain at the 2009-10 rates, and are as follows:

On earnings up to and including £18,000 {5.5%), on ea rnings ahove £18,000 and up to £22,000 (7.25%), onea rnings above
£22,000 and up to £30,000 {8.5%), on earnings above £30,000 and up to £40,000 (9.5%) and on earnings above £40,000 (12%),

If a person works part-time their contribution rate is worked out on the whole-time pay rate for the joh, with actual contributions
paid on actual pay earned.

There is no automatic entitlement to a lump sum. Membhers may opt to give up {commute) pension for lump sum up to the
limnit set by the Finance Act 2004. The accrual rate guarantees a pension based on 1/60th of final pensionable salary and years
of pensionable service. {Prior to 2009 the accrual rate guaranteed a pension based on 1/80th and a lump sum based on 3/80th
of final pensionable salary and years of pensionable service).

The value of the accrued benefits has been calculated on the basis of the age at which the person will first become entitled to
receive a pension on retirement without reduction on acecount of its payment at that age; without exerclsing any option to
commute pension entitlement into a lump sum; and without any adjustment for the effects of future inflation.

The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the parson has accrued as consequence of their total Regional Tra nsport
Partnership service,

Aflinformation disclosed in the tables at paragra ghs 4, 5 and 6 in this Remuneration Report was audited by Audit Scotland.
The other sections of the Remuneration Report were reviewed by Audit Scotland to ensure that they are consistent with
the financial statements.

Chair of Partnership
Board: RUSSELL IMRIE Date signed: 30th May 2011

Partnership Director: ALEX MACAULAY Date signed: 27th May 2011
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

FOREWORD BY THE TREASURER

Introduction

The audited Statement of Accounts presents the financial position and performance of the Partnership for the year to 31 March 2011.
This foreword describes briefty the nature and purpose of each of the statements which follow and the principal items of interest or
note, which are contained within the accounts.

The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN) was estahlished under the Regional Transport Partnerships
(Establishment, Constitution and Membership) {Scotland) Order 2005. The Partnership came into force on 1st December 2005. Under
Section 3 of the Transport (Scotland) Act 2005, the net expenses of SESTRAN, after allowing for government grant and any other
income, are met by its constituent councils.

The constituent councils of SESTRAN are the City of Edinburgh, Clackmannanshire, East Lothian, Falkirk, Fife, Midlothian, Scottish
Borders and West Lothian. In 2010/11 the Partnership delivered an approved programme of revenue projects.

Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards {iFRS)
The Partnership prepares its accounts in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom. The Code of Practice is now based on international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The Chancellor's 2007 budget announcement introduced IERS based financial reporting for government and public sector
accounting from 2008/09. The 2008 Budget Report required Local Authorities to adopt IFRS from Ist April 2010. The financial
statements include IFRS based comparative figures for 2009/10. The main reason for adopting IFRS is to bring benefits in
consistency and comparability between financial reports in the global economy and to folfow private sector best practice.

Tables explaining the material differences between the amounts presented in the 2009/10 financial statements and the
equivalent amounts presented in the 2010/11 financial statements are shown in note 27 to the financial statements.

The Financiai Statements comprise the following statements, together with accompanying explanatory notes:

e Annual Governance Statement
This sets out the framework and arrangements for governance of the Partnership's affairs, including the management of risk.

¢ Remuneration Report
The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Amendment Regulations 2011 require Regional Transport Partnerships to include a

Remuneration Report in the Financial Statements. The Remuneration Report discloses information for each senior employee.

¢ Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts

This statement sets out the respective responsibilities of the Partnership and the Treasurer for the accounts.

s Movement in Reserves Statement
This a new statement under IFRS which shows the mavement in the year on different reserves held by the Partnership. This is
analysed into "Usable Reserves" (that is, those that can be applied to fund expenditure) and "Unusable Reserves". The Partnership

does not have statutory powers to operate a usable reserve.

o Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
This is a new statement under IFRS which shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally
accepted accounting practices.

o Balance Sheet
The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Partnership. The net
assets of the Partnership (assets less labilities) are matched by reserves held by the Partnership.
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

FOREWORD BY THE TREASURER (contd.)

e Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Partnership during the reporting
period. The statement shows how the Partnership generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash
flows as operating, investing and financing activities.

e Statement of Accounting Policies

The Statement of Accounting Policies explains the basis for the recognition, measurement and disciosure of
transactions and other events shown in the Financial Statements. Some of the Partnership's accounting policies have
been amended to reflect the changes made under IFRS.

Revenue Budget Performance

For 2010/11, the Partnership is required to present its financial performance as a Comprehensive income and
Expenditure Statement. This can be seen on page 12. The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
complies with IFRS, However, to show the net position of the Partnership and to allow comparison with the
approved revenue budget, it is necessary to adjust the expenditure shown in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement to take account of a number of items where the statutory accounting requirements differ
from the management accounting practice of the Partnership. These adjustrments are detailed in Note 19.

The approved Revenue budget of the Partnership in 2010/11 was £1.397m. A comparison of the outturn
position with the revised budget is summarised below:

Approved

Budget Outturn  Variance

£'000 £'000 £000

Core Service 653 664 11
Projects 744 733 (11)
Total Expenditure 2010/11 1,397 1,397 0
Interest Receivable (3) (3) 0
Government Grant (920) (920) 0
Constituent Council Requisitions (300) {300} 0
Other Income (174) (174) 0
Total Income 2010/11 (1,397) (1,397) 0

The Partnership incurred expenditure of £0.664m which was £11,000 above the revised Core Service revenue budget,
mainly as a result of making a provision for office dilapidations.
(see further reference below - Significant Provisions)

However, the Partnership incurred expenditure of £0.733m across various Projects which was £11,000 below the
Projects revenue budget.
Therefore the Partnership realised a break even position against the budget in 2010/11.

The Partnership retains a balance of £49,000 from 2006/7, £230,000 from 2007/08, £39,000 from 2008/09 and
£1,000 from 2009/10. These balances are held as a commitment towards a project approved by the Partnership
Board on 19th June 2009 to develop regional real-time bus passenger travel information. During 2010/11, the
Partnership used £17,000 of this available funding towards the project, leaving a balance of £302,000 available
for the project as at 31st March 2011.

Material New Assets
The Partnership spent £277,000 on 'assets under construction' in 2010/11 towards developing the regional
real-time bus passenger travel informatian system.
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

FOREWORD BY THE TREASURER (contd.)

Capital Grant
From 2008/09, the Scottish Government transferred Regional Transport capital grant funding from Regianal Transport Partnerships
to local authorities.

However, in 2007/08 the Partnership entered into a funding commitment of £200,000 to Network Rail for a level crossing project at
Kirknewton. This commitment was funded by additional Government Grant of £100,000 and an underspend on the Partnership's
2007/08 capital budget of £100,000. The Partnership's financial commitment to this project is now complete at a total cost of £100,000.
The financial statements include the payment to Network Rail of £100,000 and reflect the resulting uncommitted expenditure of
£100,000 against the original funding commitment of £200,000. (see further reference below - Material Events after the Reporting Date)

IAS 19 - Retirement Benefits
International Accounting Standard {IAS) 19 is based on the principle that an organisation should account for retirement benefits at
the point at which it commits to paying them, rather than when payment actually falls due.

Net cost of services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement therefore includes an appropriate amount for the
retirement benefits the Partnership has committed to pay, while the effect on the amount to be met from government grant and
constituent council requisitions has been offset by the inclusion of pensions interest costs and a transfer to the pensions reserve.

Net Pension Asset/ Liability

The net pension Hability, shown in note 24.4 to the Financial Statements, in accordance with the requirements of 1AS 19 (Retirement
Benefits), amounts to £56,000. The 2008 actuarial valuation considered the appropriate employer's rates and this, together with
revenues generated from investments, will be utilised to meet the fund's commitments. A triennial review of pension fund
contributions is due in 2011.

Financial instruments

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting stipulates that information required by IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation; IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and measurement; and FRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures; he discfosed
by way of a note in the financial statements.

This information is contained in note 11 which details the make up of financial instruments, the key risks which the Partnership is
exposed to in the management of its financial instruments, and how those risks are managed.

Significant Provisions
The Partnership has made a provision of £20,000 in respect of estimated dilapidation costs following the decision to terminate the
lease of an office at Hopetoun Gate, 8b McDonald Road, Edinburgh. The lease expired on 4th May 2011.

Material Events After the Reporting Date
The Partnership has entered into a lease of a new office at Claremont House, 130 East Claremont Street, Edinburgh.
The date of entry for this lease was 4th May 2011.

The Partnership Board approved on 8th April 2011 that the £100,000 underspend on the Kirknewton level crossing project be used
as a commitment towards developing the regional real-time bus passenger travel information.

Planned Future Service Delivery

On 4th February 2011, the Partnership's Board agreed a revenue budget for 2011/12, which made provision for £0.467m of core
service costs and £1.403m of project expenditure in support of Regional Transport Sirategy projects. The budget estimates
£0.863m of external funding wil be available for projects, of which £0.765m is for EU funded projects.

Current Economic Climate

In recognition of the current financial constraints faced by public sector organisations, the 2011-12 budget makes provision for a 25%
reduction in constituent council requisitions and a 15% reduction in Scottish Government grant. Council and Scottish Government
funding is confirmed for a period of one year. The Partnership is working towards identifying further cashable efficiency savings

for 2012-13. The partnership is undertaking a service review to identify future service delivery options, given current financial
constraints.

Treasurer: DONALD MCGOUGAN, CPFA Date signed: 2nd june 2011

Treasurer: KAREN KELLY, CPFA /Z{(Q;(é;) /égééj*/ Date signed: d )8 /’f) /]g
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

The Partnership's Responsibilities

The Partnership is required:

® to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has
the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Partnership, that officer is the Treasurer;

e to mahage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of its resources and safeguard its assets;

e to approve the Statermnent of Accounts.

The Treasurer's Responsibilities

The Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of the Partnership's statement of accounts in accordance with proper
practices as set out in the CIPFA / LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom {'the
Code').

In preparing this statement of accounts, the Treasurer has:

o selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
e made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;
e complied with the Code of Practice, except where stated in the Policies and Notes to the Accounts.

The Treasurer has also:

» kept proper accounting records which were up to date;

e taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Statement of Accounts

The Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the Partnership as at 31st March
2011, and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31st March 2011,

Treasurer: DONALD MCGOUGAN, CPFA Date signed: 2nd June 2011

Treasurer:  KAREN KELLY, CPFA /{@/{g/) }/gdq Datesigned: ORI}
A
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

This statement shows the movement in the year on different reserves held by the Partnership, analysed into “Usable Reserves” {that is, those that
can be applied to fund expenditure) and "Unusable Reserves”. The Su rplus or {Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows the true econamic
cost of providing the Partnership's services, more details of which are shown in the Co mprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are
different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance befare any discretionary transfers to or fram earmarked
reserves undertaken by the Partnership.

2009/10 - Previous Year Comparative General Total
Fund Usable Partnership
Balance Reserves Reserves
£'000 £'000 £'000

®  opening Balances at 1 April 2009 0 0 (64) (64)
@  Movement in reserves during 2009/10

(Surplus} or Deficit on Provision of Services 47 47 0 47
Other Comprehensive Expenditure and income 0 0 224 224
Total Comprehensive Expenditure and Income a7 a7 224 271
©  Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under {47) (47) 47 0
regulations {Note 5)

Net increase/decrease before transfers to Earmarked Reserves 0 0 271 271
@  Transfers toffrom Earmarked Reserves 0 0 0 0
Increase/Decrease in 2009/10 1] 0 271 271
Balance at 31 March 2010 carried forward 0 0 207 207

.. Usable Reserves
2010/11 - Current Financial Year General Total Total
Fund Usable Partnership
Balance Reserves Reserves
£'000 £'600 £'000 £'000

@ Opening Baiances at 1 April 2010 0 0 207 207
A  Movementin reserves during 2010/11

(Surplus} or Deficit on Provision of Services (347) {347} o; (347)

Other Comprehensive Expenditure and Income 0 0 (126) {126)

Totai Comprehensive Expenditure and Income {347) (347} (126) (473)
®  Adjustments between accounting hasis & funding basis under 347 347 (347) g
regulations (Note 5)

Net increase/decrease before transfers to Earmarked Reserves 0 0 (473) (473)
@  Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves 0 0 ¢ 0

Increase/Decrease in 2010711 0 0 (473) {473)

Balance at 31 March 2011 carriad forward 2 a {258) {266}
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 2010/11

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather
than the amount to be funded by government grant, council requisitions and other income.

2009/10 - 2010/11
Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income| Expenditure Expenditure Income| Expenditure
£'000 £'000 £'000{Services £'000 £'000 £'000
1,789 {549} 1,240)Highways and Transport Services 1,183 (223} 360
29 0 29{Corporate and Democratic Core 27 0 27
10 1] 10(Non Distributed {Gains) / Costs * 0 (106) (108)
1,828 (549) 1,279|Cost Of Services 1,210 (329} 881
] 0 0jOther Operating Expenditure t] 0 0
52 (50) 2|Financing & Investment Income (Note 7) 63 (71) (8)
] {1,234) {1,234)[Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income {Note 8) 0 {1,220) (1,220)
1,880 (1,833) 47|{5urplus} or Defi¢it on Provision of Services 1,273 {1,620) (347)

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

224 0 224|Actuarial {gains) / losses on pension assets / liabilities 0 (126} {(126)
224 0 224{Total Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 0 (126} {126)
2,104 (1,833) 271{Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 1,273 {1,746) {473)

* Past Service Gains of £106,000 in respect of a change in the calculation basis as introduced in the Chancellor's budget statement on
22 June 2010, so future pension increases are now linked to the Consumer Prices Index {CP1) and not the Retail Price Index {RPI).
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

BALANCE SHEET

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Partnership. The net assets
of the Partnership (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Partnership, Reserves are reperted in two categories.
The first category of reserves are usable reserves, that is, those reserves that the Partnership may use to provide services, subject to the
need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use. The Partnership does not have powers to
maintain a usable reserve. The second category of reserves are those that the Partnership is not able to use to provide services. This
category of reserves include reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses {for example, the Capital Adjustment Account Reserve), where
amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the
Movement in Reserves Statement line "Adustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations”.

1 April 31 March 31 March
2008 2010 2011
£'000 £'000 Notes £'000
125 84 Property, plant and equipment 9.1 320
16 12 Intangible assets 10 8
141 96 Long term assets 328
192 268 Short-term debtors 12 164
1007 951 Cash and cash equivalents 13 1,113
1,189 1,219 Current assets 1,277
{1,001) {1,027) Short-term creditors 14 {1,263)
(2000 (200} Provisions 15 (20}
{1,201} {1,227) Current liahbilities {1,283)
(75} {295} Other long-term liabilities {Pensions) 17.2 (56)
(75) (295) Long-term liabilities {56}
64 (207} Net assets/ {liabilities) 266
Financed by:
0 0 Usable reserves 15 0
(64) 207 Unusable reserves 17 (266)
{64} 207 Total reserves {266}

The unaudited Financial Statements were issued on 2nd June 2011 by the former Treasurer to the Partnership, D. McGougan.

The audited Financial Statements were authorised for issue by K. Kelly on 28th September 2011.

Treasurer:

Treasurer:

DONALD MCGOUGAN, CPFA

KAREN KELLY, CPFA

Meler el
C7—C
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Partnership during the reporting period. The
statement shows how the Partnership generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing
and financing activities. The amount of net cash flow arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the
operations of the Partnership are funded by way of government grant income, council requisitions and recipients of services provided
by the Partnership. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash cutflows have been made for resources which are intended
to contribute to the Partnership's future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on
future cash flows by providers of capital {that is, borrowing} to the Partnership.

31 March 31 March
2010 2010
£'000 £'000
(1,227)
(315)
{86)
(219)
(1,847}
379
1,524
1,903
56
0
0
0
1)
56
1,007
951

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Government Grants
Constituent Council Requisitions

Interest received
Other receipts from operating activities

Cash inflows generated from operating activities

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees
Cash paid to suppliers of goods and services

Cash outflows generated from operating activities

Net cash flows from operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Net cash flows from investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Other receipts from financing activities

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net( increase)/ decrease in cash and cash equivalents (Note 13)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period

31 March 31 March

2011 2011
£'000 £'000
{1,026)
(300)
{5
(326)
(1,657)
341
1,154
1,495
(162)
277
277
(277)
{277)
(162)
951
1,113

Page 14




The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

1. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1 Accounting Policies
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Partnership's transactions for the 2010/11 financial year and
its position at the year-end of 31 March 2011. The Partnership is required to prepare an annual
Statement of Accounts by the Local Authority Accounts {Scotland) Regulations 1985 in accordance with
proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2010/11 and the Best Value Accounting Code of Practice 2010/11,
supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
The Partnership has accounted for the transition to the IFRS based Code of Practice in accordance with
IFRS1, First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards, except where interpretations
or adaptations to fit the public sector are detailed in the Code.
The financial statements have been prepared on an historic cost basis.

1.2 Accruals of Expenditure and Income
The revenue account has been prepared on an accruals basis in accordance with the Code of Practice.
Amounts estimated to be due to or from the Partnership, which are still cutstanding at the year end, are
included in the accounts. Government Grants have been accounted for on an accruals basis.

1.3 Operating Leases

a} leased-in assets
Rental payments under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement on a straight line basis over the life of the lease.

b) Lleased-out gssets
The Partnership has not identified any leased-out assets that fall under the definition of operating leases.

1.4 Finance Leases

al Lleased-in assets
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.
The Partnership has not identified any leased-in assets that fall under the definition of finance leases.

b} leased-out assets

The Partnership has not identified any leased-out assets that fall under the definition of finance leases.
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

1.

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.)

15

1.6

1.7

Overheads

The cost of service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement incfudes the Partnership's
overheads.

Charges to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for use of non-current assets

Charges are made to the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement for the use of non-current assets,
through depreciation charges. The aggregate charge to individual services is determined on the basis of the assets
used in each service.

Employee Benefits
Pensions

The Partnership is an admitted body to the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS} which is administered by
the Lothian Pension Fund. The LGPS is a defined benefit statutory scheme, administered in accordance with the
Local Government Pension Scheme (Scotland) Regulations 1998, as amended.

The financial statements have been prepared including pension costs, as determined under International
Accounting Standard 19 — Employee Benefits (IAS 19). The cost of service in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement includes expenditure equivalent to the amount of retirement benefits the Partnership has
commitied to during the year. Pensions interest cost and the expected return on pension assets have been
included in the “Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services” within the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

The pension costs charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in respect of employees are
not equal to contributions paid to the funded scheme for employees. The amount by which pension costs under
IAS19 are different from the contributions due under the pension scheme regulations are disclosed in the
Movement in Reserves Statement for the General Fund.

Pension assets have been valued at bid value {purchase price), as required under 1AS19.

Under pension regulations, contribution rates are set to meet 100% of the overall liabilities of the Fund.

Accruals of Holiday Leave

Cost of service includes a charge for annual leave to which employees are entitled, but have not taken as at the
Balance Sheet date. The Partnership is not required to raise requisitions on constituent councils to cover the cost
of accrued annual leave. These costs are therefore replaced by revenue provision in the Movement in Reserves
Statement for the General Fund balance by way of an adjusting transaction with the Accumulated Absence
Account.
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

1. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Contd.)
1.2 Non Current Assets
a} Intangible Assets
Expenditure on assets that have no physical substance but are identifiable and controlled by the Partnership have
been capitalised where a benefit of more than one financial year can be established. The balance is depreciated
over the economic life of the asset to reflect the pattern of consumption of benefits. Intangible assets have been
valued on an historic cost basis.
b)  Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment is categorised into the following classes:
Vehicles, plant and eguipment;
Assets under construction;
Recognition:
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment has been
capitalised on an accruals basis;
Depreciation:
Depreciation is provided on all Property, Plant and Equipment;
The Partnership does not depreciate its Property, Plant and Equipment in the year of acquisition.
Thereafter depreciation is provided on a straight line basis over the expected life of the asset;
Measurement:
Property, Plant and Equipment are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of net current replacement cost or
net realisable value in existing use, net of depreciation.
1.9 Government Grants and Other Contributions
Grants and other contributions relating to non-current assets are credited to a Capital Adjustment Account and
written off to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in line with the depreciation policy of the
related assets.
Where there are conditions attached to capital grants and contributions that have not been met at the Balance
Sheet date, the grant or contribution will be recognised as part of the Capital Grants Unapplied Account. Once the
condition has been met, the grant or contribution will be transferred from the Capital Grants Unapplied Account
and recognised as income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
1.10 Provisions

Provisions are made for liabilities of uncertain timing ar amount that have been incurred.

The value of provisions is based upon the Partnership’s obligations arising from past events, the probability that a
transfer of economic benefit will take place, and a reasonable estimate of the obligation.
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

1. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Contd.)
1.11 Reserves
Reserves held on the Balance Sheet are classified as either usable or unusable. Unusable reserves cannot be
applied to fund expenditure. Under the Transport {Scotland) Act 2005, the Partnership does not have the power
to operate a General Fund reserve.
The Partnership operates the following unusable reserves:
a)  Pension Reserve
The Partnership operates a Pensions Reserve Fund under the terms of the Local Government Pension Reserve
Fund {Scotiand) Regulations 2003. The Pension Reserve represents the net monies which the Partnership requires
to meet its net pension lability as calculated under IAS 19, Employee Benefits.
b}  Capital Adjustment Account
The Capital Adjustment Account represents movement in the funding of assets arising either from capital
resources such as capital receipts, or capital funded directly from revenue contributions.
¢)  Accumulated Absences Account
This represents the net monies which the Partnership requires to meet its short-term compensated absences for
employees under 1A519,
1.12 Financial Instruments
Financial Assets
Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost. Annual credits to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount
of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument.
Surpius funds held on behalf of the Partnership are managed by the City of Edinburgh Council under a formal
management agreement in a pooled investment arrangement.
1.13 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include:
Credit and debit funds held in banks
1.14 Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Partnership a possible obligation whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Partnership.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts.
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

1. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.)

1.15 Value Added Tax
VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty's Revenue
and Customs.

1.16 Events After the Reporting Period
Events after the reporting period are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the
end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue.
Two types of events can be identified;
i) those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period - the Financial
Statements are adjusted to reflect such events;
ii) those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period - the Financial Statements are not
adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in
the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of Accounts.

117 Short term Debtors and short term Creditors
The revenue transactions of the Partnership are recorded on an accruals basis which means that amounts due to
or from the Partnership, but still outstanding at the year end, are included in the accounts. Where there was
insufficient information available to provide actual figures, estimates have been included.

1.18 Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the change
provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on
the Partnership's financial position or performance.

Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively; i.e. in the current and future vears affected by
the change.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening baiances and
comparative amounts for the prior period.
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

2. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the Partnership has had to make certain judgements
about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.
The critical judgements made in the made in the Statement of Accounts are:

- There is high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government.
The Partnership has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that
the assets of the Partnership might be impaired as a result of a need reduce levels of service provision.

3. ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE AND OTHER MAJOR SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the
Partnership about the future or events that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into
account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances
cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions
and estimates.

The items in the Partnership's Balance Sheet at 31 March 2011 for which there is a significant risk of
material adjustment in the forth coming financial year are:

3.1 Pension Liabilities

Uncertainties

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements relating to
the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in retirement ages,
mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged
to provide the Partnership with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied.

Effect if Actual Result Differs from Assumptions

The effects on the net pensions liability of changes in individual assumptions can be measured.

For instance, a 0.5% increase in the discount rate assumption would result in a decrease in the pension .
liability of £102,000.

However, the assumptions interact in complex ways. During 2010/11, the Partnership's actuaries
advised that the net pensions liability had decreased by £239,000 as a result of pension increases being
finked to the Consumer Prices Index rather than Retail Prices Index, and due to updating of the
assumptions.

4. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Treasurer on 2 june 2011.

Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the financial statements or notes. Where events
taking place before this date provided information about conditions existing at 31 March 2011, the figures
in the financial statements and notes have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the impact

of this information.

The financial statements and notes have not been adjusted for the following events which took place
after 31 March 2011 as they provide information that is relevant to an understanding of the Partnership's
financiat position but do not relate to conditions at that date:

The Partnership has entered into a lease of a new office at Claremont House, 130 East Claremont Street,
Edinburgh. The lease runs from the date of entry, being 4th May 2011, until 15th February 2016.

The Partnership Board approved on 8th April 2011 that the £100,000 underspend on the Kirknewton level
crossing project be used as a commitment towards developing the regional real-time bus passenger
traved information.
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

5.

ASSUMPTIONS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING BASIS UNDER REGULATIONS

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
recognised by the Partnership in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are
specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Partnership to meet future capital and revenue
expenditure.

:Usable Reserves

2010/11 General Fund

Balance

£'000
Adjustments primarily invelving the
Capital Adjustment Account

Reversal of items debited or credited
to the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement {CIES)

Charges for depreciation and (41) 41 41
impairment of non-current assets

Amortisation of intangible assets {4) 4 4

Insertion of items not debited or credited
to the Comprehensive Jncome and
Expenditure Statement {CIES)

Contributions credited to the CIES that have 277 (277} (277}
been applied to capital financing

Adjustments primarily involving the
Pensions Reserve

Reversal of items relating to retirement 56 (56) {586)
benefits debited or credited to the CIES

Employer's pension contributions and
direct payments to pensioners payable 57 (57) (57}
inthe year

Adjustments primarily involving the
Accumulated Absence Account

Amount by which officer remuneration 2 (2} (2)
charged to the CIES on an accruals
basis is different from remuneration
chargeable in the year in accordance
with statutory requirements

Total Adjustments 347 {(232) (2} (113) (347)
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

5. ASSUMPTIONS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING BASIS UNDER REGULATIONS

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
recognised by the Authority in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are
specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Autho rity to meet future capital and revenue
expenditure.

2009/10 General Fund
Balance

£'000
Adjustments primarily involving the
Capital Adjustment Account

Reversal of items debited or credited
to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement {CIES)

Charges for depreciation and (41) a1 41
impairment of non-current assets

Amortisation of intangible assets (4) 4 4

Adjustments primarily involving the
Pensions Reserve

Reversal of items relating to retirement (49) 49 49
benefits debited or credited to the CIES

Employer's pension contributions and
direct payments to pensioners payable 53 (53) {53}
in the year

Adjustments primarily involving the
Accumulated Absence Account
Account

Amount by which officer remuneration (6) 6 6
charged to the CIES on an accruals
basis is different from remuneration
chargeable in the year in accordance
with statutory requirements

Total Adjustments {47) 45 6 (4) 47

6. TRANSFERS TO/FROM EARMARKED RESERVES

The Partnership does nat have powers for an earmarked reserve to be set aside from the General Fund to provide financing
for future expenditure plans.
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

7. FINANCING AND INVESTMENT INCOME

2010/11 2009/10

£'000 £'000

Pensions interest cost and expected return on pensions assets (5) 7
Interest receivable and similar income {3) {5)
(8) 2

8. TAXATION AND NON SPECIFIC GRANT INCOMES

2010/11 2009/10
£'000 £'000

Government Grant {920} {920}
Constituent Council Requisitions {300) (314)
(1,220) {1,234)
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

9.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2.1

Movements on balances:

Movements in 2010/11

Cost or Valuation

At 1st April 2010
Additions

Revaluation increases/(decreases)
recognised in Revaluation Reserve

Revaluation increases/(decreases)
recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on
the Proviston of Services

Assets reclassified (to)/from Held for
Sale

Other movements

At 31st March 2011

Accumulated Depreciation

At 1st April 2010
Depreciation charge

Depreciation written out to
Revaluation Reserve

Depreciation written out to the
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of
Services

Derecognition - disposals
Other movements in depreciation

At 31st March 2011

Net Book Value
at 31st March 2011
at 31st March 2010

Total

Vehicles Property
Plant and Assets Under Plant and
Equipment Construction Equipment
£'000 £'000 £'000
199 0 199

0 277 277

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 a 0

199 277 476
(115) 0 {115)
(41) 0 (41)

0 0 0

0 0] o

0 0 0

0 0 0

{156) 0 (156}

43 277 320

84 0 34
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd.)

9.2 Movements on balances:

Comparative Movements in 2009/10

Total
Vehicles Property
Plant and Plant and
Equipment Equipment
Cost or Valuation £000 £'000
At 1st April 2009 198 189
Additions 0 0
Revaluation increases/{decreases) 0 0
recognised in Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation increases/(decreases) 0 0
recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on
the Provision of Services
Assets reclassified (to)/from Held for 0 0
Sale
Other movements 0 0
At 31st March 2010 199 199
Accumulated Depreciation
At 1st April 2009 (74) (74)
Depreciation charge {41) (41)
Depreciation written out to 0 0
Revaluation Reserve
Depreciation written out to the 0 0
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of
Services
Derecognition - disposals 0 0
Other movements in depreciation 0 0
At 31st March 2010 (115) {115)

9.3 Depreciation

The following useful lives have been used in the calculation of depreciation:
Vehicles, plant and equipment - 4 - 5 vears
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

9.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd.)

9.4

10.

Capital Commitments

At 31 March 2011, the Partnership has entered into a contract to install real time bus passenger
information systems across the South East of Scotland region.

The total value of this three year contract is £2.8m of which £2.5m is anticipated to relate to capital
expenditure.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Partnership accounts for its software as intangible assets, to the extent that software is not an
integral part of a particular IT system and accounted for as part of the hardware item of Property,
Plant and Equipment. The intangible assets include both purchased licences and internally
generated software.

All software is given a finite useful life, based on assessments of the period that the software is
expected to be of use to the Partnership. The useful lives assigned to the major software suites
used by the Partnership are:

5years: Risk Management System - Magique

The carrying amount of intangible assets is amortised on a straight-line basis and charged to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account.

The movement on Intangible Assets during the year is as follows:

2010/11
£'000

Balance at start of year:
Gross carrying amounts 20
Accumulated amortisation (8)
Net carrying amount at start of year 12
Additions )
Amortisation for the period (4)
Net carrying amount at end of year 8

Comprising:

Gross carrying amounts 20
Accumulated amortisation {12}
&
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
11.1 The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet:
Long-term Current
31st March  31st March 31st March  31st March
2011 2010 2011 2010
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Investments
Loans and receivables 0 0 1,241 1,150
Borrowings
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 0 0 763 861
11.2 The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 2010/11
in relation to financial instrumerits are made up as follows:
Income, Expenses, Gains and Losses
Financial Financial Total Financial Financial Total
Liabilities Assets Liabilities Assets
measured at measured at
amortised Loans and amortised Loans and
cost receivables cost receivables
31st March  31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March  31st March
2011 2011 2011 2010 2010 2010
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Interest expense 0 0 0 0 o o
Interest income 0 3 3 0 5 5
Net gain/{loss) for the year 0 3 3 0 5 5
11.3 Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities
The financial assets represented by loans and receivahles are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost.
Since all of the Partnership's loans and receivables mature within the next 12 months, the earrying amount has
been assumed to approximate to fair value. The fair value of trade and other receiva bles is taken to be the
invaiced or billed amount.
The fair values calculated are as follows:
31 March 2011 31 March 2010
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Financial Liabilities Amount Value Amount Value
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade creditors 763 763 861 861
31 March 2011 31 March 2010
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Financial Assets £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Loans and receivables 1,225 1,225 1,136 1,136
Trade debtors 16 16 14 14
1,241 1,241 1,150 1,150
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

12. DEBTORS

31st March 31st March
2011 2010
£'000 £'000

Debtors:
Central government bodies 9 50
HM Customs and Excise - VAT 19 24
Other entities and individuals 136 194
164 268

13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
The balance of cash and cash equivalents is made up of the following elements:
31st March 31ist March
2011 2010
£000 £'000
Cash held by the Partnership 0 1
Bank accounts 1,113 950
1,113 951
14. CREDITORS

31st March 31st March
2011 2010
£'000 £'000
Central government bodies {149) {49)
Other local authorities {352) (309)
Other entities and individuals {756) (661)
Employee costs (&) {8)
(1,263) (1,027)
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

15. PROVISIONS
Network Dilapidation
Rail Costs Total
Cost or Valuation £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance at ist April 2010 200 0] 200
Additional provisions made in 2010/11 0] 20 20
Amounts used in 2010/11 (100} 0 {100}
Unused amounts reversed in 2010/11 (100} 0] (100}
Balance at 31st March 2011 0 20 20
The Partnership has established a provision of £20,000 to meet estimated dilapidation costs
following the decision to terminate the lease of an office at Hopetoun Gate, 8b McDonald Road,
Edinburgh. The iease expired on 4th May 2011.
The Partnership established a provision of £200,000 to meet a commitment to Network Rail towards
the cost of the Kirknewton Level Crossing Project. The final cost was £100,000.
i6. USABLE RESERVES
The Partnership does not have statutory powers to operate a usable reserve,
17. UNUSABLE RESERVES
31st March 31st March
2011 2010
£'000 £'000
17.1 Capital Adfustment Account (328} {96)
17.2 Pension Reserve 56 295
17.3 Accumuiated Absence Account 6 8
{266) 207
17.1 Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financi ng

the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The
Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation,
impairment lasses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement {with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures
to a historical cost basis). The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Partnership
as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement.
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

17. UNUSABLE RESERVES (Contd.)

17.1 Capital Adjustment Account (Contd.) 2010/11 2009/10
£'000 £'000
Balance at 1st April {96) (141)
Reversal of items related to capital expenditure debited or
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets 41 41
Amortisation of intangible assets 4 4
Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets consumed in year {51) (96)
Capital financing applied in the year:
Contributions credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement that have been applied to capital financing (277) 0
Balance at 31st March (328) (96)

17.2 Pension Reserve

The Pension Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for
accounting for post employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory
provisions. The Partnership accounts for post employment henefits in the Comprehensive Income

and

Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating

the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any

resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to
be financed as the Partnership makes employer's contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any

pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore
shows a shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the
Partnership has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will
have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.

2010/11 2009/10
£'000 £'000
Balance at 1st April 295 75
Actuarial losses or (gains) on pension assets and liabilities {126} 224
Reversals of items relating to retirement benefits debited or (56) 49
credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to (57) (53)
pensioners payable in the year.
56 295
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

17. UNUSABLE RESERVES (Contd.)

17.3 Accumulated Absence Account

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the
General Fund Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, for
example, annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31st March. Statutory arrangements require
that the impact on the General Fund balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the Account.

2010/11 2009/10
£'000 £'000
Balance at 1st April 8 2
Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of (8) {2)
the preceding year
Amounts accrued at the end of the current year 6 8
Balance at 31st March 6 8
18. MEMBERS ALLOWANCES
The Partnership paid the following amounts to members during the year:
2010/11 2009/10
£'000 £'000
Expenses 2 3
2 3
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

19. AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR RESOURCE ALLOCATION DECISIONS

The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement is that specified by the Best Value Accounting Code of Practice. However,
decisions about resource allocation are taken by the Partnership's Board on the basis of budget
reports analysed across functions. These reparts are prepared on a different basis from the accounting
policies used in the financial statements. In particular:

* no charges are made in relation to capital expenditure {whereas depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses in excess of the balance on the Revaluation Reserve and amortisations are

charged to services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement),

* the cost of retirement benefits is based on cash flows {payments of employer's pensions
contributions) rather than current service cost of benefits accrued in the year,

- expenditure on some support services is budgeted for centrally and not charged to projects

The income and expenditure of the Partnership's principal functions recorded in the budget reports for

the year is as follows:

Segmental Income and Expenditure Core Service Projects Total
2010/11 £'000 £'000 £'000
Fees, charges & other service income 0 (174) (174}
Interest and investment income (3} 0 (3)
Government grants (350) {570) (920)
Constituent Council requisitions (300) 0 {300}
Total Income {653) (744) {1,397)
Employee expenses 356 0 356
Other service expenses 248 0 248
Support service recharges 60 0 60
Project costs 0 733 733
Total Expenditure 664 733 1,397
Net Expenditure 11 {11) 0
Segmental Income and Expenditure Core Service Projects Total
2009/10 £'000 £'000 £'000
Fees, charges & other service income o (415) (415)
Interest and investment income (5) ¢ (5}
Government grants (350} {570) {920)
Constituent Council requisitions (314) 0 (314)
Total Income {669) (985) {1,654}
Employee expenses 327 0 327
Other service expenses 269 0 269
Support service recharges 70 0 70
Project costs 0 987 987
Total Expenditure 666 987 1,653
Net Expenditure (3) 2 L
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19.

AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR RESOURCE ALLOCATION DECISIONS {Contd.)

Reconciliation of Segmental Income and Expenditure to Cost of Services in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement

This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of the segmental income and expenditure
relate to the amounts included in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement,

2010/11  2009/10
£'000 £'000
Net expenditure in the Segmental Analysis 0 (1)
Amounts in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement not {342) 41
reported to management in the Segmental Analysis
Amounts in the Segrmental Analysis not included in the Comprehensive 1,223 1,239
Income and Expenditure Statement *
Cost of Services in Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 881 1,279
( * investment income, government grant and Council requisitions are presented differently in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement )
Reconciliation to Subjective Analysis
This recenciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of segmental income and expenditure
relate to a subjective analysis of the Surplus or Deficit an the Provision of Services included in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
Not Nat
Segmental Reported  Included Cost Corparate
Analysis  to Mgmt in CIES of Services Amounts Total
2010/11 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000
Reconciliation to Subjective
Analysis
Fees, charges & other service incame (174} {174) {174}
Interest and investment income (3) 3 0 (3) (3}
Government grants (920) 920 0 (920) (920)
Constituent Cauncil requisitions (300) 300 0 {300) {300}
Contributions credited to the CIES that have {277 (277} (277)
been applied to capital financing
(1,397) (277} 1,223 (451} (1,223) {1,674)
Employee expenses 356 356 356
Other operating expenses 248 248 248
Support services 60 a0 60
Project costs 733 733 733
Depraciation 41 a1 41
Pensions interest cost 0 63 63
Expected return on pensions assets 0 {68) (68}
Past Service Gains (108} (106} (108)
1,357 (65) 0 1,332 (5} 1,327
Surplus or Deficit on the
provision of service 0 {342) 1,223 881 (1,228) (347)
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19. AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR RESOURCE ALLOCATION DECISIONS {Contd.)
Not Not
Segmental Reported tncluded Cost Corporate
Analysis  to Mgmt inCIES  of Services Amounts Total
2009/10 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Reconciliation to Subjective

Analysis
Fees, charges & other service income (415) (415) (415)
Interest and investment income (5) 5 0 (5) (5}
Government grants {320} 920 0 (520} {920)
Canstituent Council requisitions (314) 314 1} {314) {314)
{1,654} [} 1,239 {415} {1,239) {1,654)
Employee expenses 327 327 327
Other operating expenses 269 269 269
Support services 70 70 70
Project costs 987 987 987
Depreciation 41 41 41
Pensions interest cost o 52 52
Expected return on pensions assets 0 {45) {45)
1,653 41 0 1,694 7 1,701
Surplus or Deficit on the
provision of service {1) 41 1,239 1,279 {1,232) 47
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20. EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS

The Partnership has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts,
certification of grant claims, and statutory inspections and to non-audit services provided by the
Partnership's external auditors:

2010/11 2009/10

Fees payable in respect of: £'000 £'000
external audit services carried out by the appointed auditor for the year 10 10

- statutory inspection 0 0
certification of grant claims and returns for the year 0 0

other services provided during the year 0 0

10 10

21. GRANT INCOME

The Partnership credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement in 2010/11:

2010/11 2008/10

£'000 £000
Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income
Scottish Government - Revenue Grant {920} {920)
Constituent Council Requisitions (Note 22.3) (300} (314)
(1,220) (1,234)
Credited to Services
Scottish Government - Travel Plan Grant 0 {91)
Scottish Government - Other Grants and Contributions 0 {65)
EU Grant - Dryport Project {50) {113)
EU Grant - CURACOA Project 0 (5)
EU Grant - Regional Real Time Bus Passenger Information System (75) 0
EU Grant - Lo Pinod (5) 0
EU Grant - | Transfer {6) 0
Contribution - Midlothian Council (27} 0
Contribution - City of Edinburgh Council 0 (10)
Contribution - Clackmannanshire Council 0 {29)
Contribution - Dundee City Council 0 (5)
Contribution - Fife Council o (34}
Contribution - TACTRAN 0 {30)
Contribution - West Lothian Council 0 (10)
{163) {392)
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22. RELATED PARTIES

The Partnership is required to disclose materfal transactions with related parties - bodies or individuals
that have the potential to control or influence the Partnership or to be controlled or influenced by the
Partnership. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Partnership
might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to
limit another party's ability to bargain freely with the Partnership.

22.1 Scottish Government

The Partnership receives grant-in-aid revenue funding through the Scottish Government.
Grants received from the Scottish Government are set out in the subjective analysis in Note 21.

22.2 Members

Members of the Partnership have direct control over the Partnership's financial and operating policies.

{The total of members' allowances paid by the Partnership in 2010-11 is shown in Note 18.)
22.3 Other Parties

During the year, the Partnership entered inta the following transactions with related parties:

2010/11
£'000
Revenue Expenditure - Travel Plan/ Round the Forth Grants
Clackmannanshire Council 0
East Lothian Council o
City of Edinburgh Council 0
Falkirk Council 0
Fife Council 0
Midlothian Council 0]
Scottish Borders Council 0
West Lothian Council 0
0
Revenue Expenditure - Support Services
City of Edinburgh Council - Financial Services 25
Falkirk Council - HR Services 1
Fife Council 23
49
Revenue Expenditure - Other
Scottish Government 9
City of Edinburgh Council 42
Scottish Borders Council 6
Midlothian Council
Clackmannanshire Council 25
Fife Council 4
88

Page 36

2009/10
£'000

43

24

29

53

8

(= e I e

27



The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

22. RELATED PARTIES (Contd.)

22.3 Other Parties (contd.)

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £'000

Revenue Income - Requisitions
Clackmannanshire Council {10) {11)
East Lothian Council {19) (20)
City of Edinburgh Council (95) {99)
Falkirk Council (30) {32)
Fife Council {73) {76)
Midiathian Council {16) (17)
Scottish Borders Council (23) (24)
West Lothian Council (34) {35)
(300) {314}

- Revenue Income - Interest on Revenue Balances
City of Edinburgh Council (3) (5)
{3) {5)
- Revenue Income - Other

Constituent Councils {17) 0
Scottish Government 0 (65)
Clackmannanshire Couneil 0 (29)
City of Edinburgh Council 0 {10)
Falkirk Council 0 {11)
Fife Council 0 (34)
Midlothian Council (27) (15)
West Lothian Council 0 {(21)
(44) {185)
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22.4 Other Parties

The following represents amounts due to/ (from) the Partnership at 31 March 2011, with its
related parties.

CREDITORS 2010/11 2009/10
£'000 £'000
- Creditors - Related Parties (Revenue Grants)
Scottish Government - revenue budget flexibility carry forward (49) (49)
Clackmannanshire Council {25) 0
City of Edinburgh Council {25) o
Falkirk Council 0 {2)
Fife Council 0 (7)
Midlothian Council (2) (3)
Scottish Borders Council (6) 0
West Lothian Council 0 {3}
(107) (64)
- Creditors - Related Parties (Other)
Scottish Government - capital grant {100} 0
City of Edinburgh Council (24) (24)
Constituent Councils {270) (270)
(394) {294)
Creditors - Other Parties {762) (669)
Total Creditors (1,263) (1,027)
DEBTORS
Debtors - Related Parties (Revenue Grants)
Scottish Government 9 50
9 50
- Debtors - Other Parties 155 218
Total Debtors 164 268
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23. LEASES

Operating Leases

The Partnership entered into a lease of an office at Hopetoun Gate, 8b Mcdonald Road, Edinburgh under

a five year lease agreement, which has been accounted for as an operating lease. The date of entry for

this lease was 5th May 2006, and the expiry date is 4th May 2011.

The Partnership acquired the use of a new photocopier by entering into a hire agreement, which has been
accounted for as an operating lease. The hire agreement started on 7th September 2010 and is due to expire
oh 6th September 2013.

The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future years are:

2010/11 2003/10

£'000 £'000
Not fater than 1 year 17 32
Later than 1 year not later than 5 years 29 3
Later than 5 years 0 0
46 35

The Partnership has no other material operational leases.

24. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES

24,1 Participation in Pension Schemes

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its staff, the Partnership makes contributions
towards the cost of post employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be

payable until the employees retire, the Partnership has a commitment to make the payments that
needs to be disclosed at the time that employees earn their future entitlement. As explained in
Accounting Policy 1.7, the Partnership is an admitted body to the Local Government Pension Scheme
{LGPS) which is administered by the Lothian Pension Fund.

The Partnership participates in:

A funded defined benefit final salary scheme. This means that the Partnership and employees pay
contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities with
investment assets.

An arrangement for the award of discretionary post retirement benefits upon early retirement - this
is an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which liabilities are recognised when awards
are made. However, there are no investment assets built up to meet these pension liabilities, and
cash has to be generated to meet actual pensions payments as they eventually falt due.
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24. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES (Contd.)

24.2 Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits

The Partnership recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are
earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions, However, the
charge that is required to be made is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post
employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves
Statement. The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement and the General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the year:

2010/11 2009/10
£'000 £'000
Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement
Cost of Services:
Current service costs 55 32
Past service (gains)/ costs (106) 10
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
Interest cost 63 52
Expected return on scheme assets {68) {45)
Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Surplus or (56) 49
Deficit on the Provision of services
Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to the CIES:
Actuarial {gains) and losses {126} 224
Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the CIES (126) 224

Actual amount charged against the General Fund Balance
for pensions in the year:

Employers contributions payable to the scheme 57 53

57 53

The cumulative amount of actuarial losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement 1o 31st March 2011 is £186,000.
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24. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES (Contd.)

24.3 Assets and Liabilities in Relation to Post-employment Benefits

Reconciliation of present value of the scheme Habilities (defined benefit obligation):

2010/11 2009/10
£'000 £'000
Opening balance at 1st April {1,196) {774)
Current Service Cost (55) (32)
Interest cost (63) {52)
Contributions by scheme participants {21) (21)
Actuarial gains and (losses) 143 (414}
Benefits paid 22 107
Fast service gains and (costs) 106 {10)
Closing balance at 31st March {1,064) {1,196)
Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme assets:
2010/11 2009/10
£'000 £'000
Opening balance at 1st April 01 699
Expected rate of return 68 45
Actuarial gains and (losses) (17) 190
Employer contributions 57 53
Contributions by scheme participants 21 21
Benefits paid (22) {107)
Closing balance at 31st March 1,008 901

The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns available
on the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments
are based on gross redemption yields as at the Balance Sheet date. Expected returns on equity
investments reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in the respective markets.
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24. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES {Contd.)

24.4 Scheme History

Present vaiue of liabilities:

Local Government Pension Scheme
Discretionary benefits

Fair value of assets in the Local
Government Pension Scheme

Surplus/{deficit) in the scheme:

Local Government Pension Scheme
Discretionary benefits

Total

2006/07  2007/08  2008/08  2009/10  2010/11
£°000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
(836) {803) (774) {1,196) (1,064)

0 0 0 0 0
759 815 699 901 1,008
(77) 12 {75) (295) (56)

0 0 0 0 0
(77) 12 (75) (295) (56)

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Partnership has in the long run to pay

post employment {retirement) benefits. The total liability of £56,000 has an impact on the net worth

of the Partnership as recorded in the Balance Sheet.

However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the

Partnership remains healthy:

the deficit on the local government scheme will be made good by increased contributions over

the remaining working life of employees (that is, before payments fall due), as assessed by the

scheme actuary

- finance is only required 1o be raised to cover discretionary benefits when the pensions are

actually paid

The total contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pension Scheme by
the Partnership in the year to 31 March 2012 is £63,000.
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24,

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES (Contd.)

24.5 Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities

24.6

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an estimate

of the pensions that will be payable in future years which are dependent on assumptions about mortality
rates, salary levels, etc. The Local Government Pension Scheme has been assessed by Hymans Robertson
LLP, an independent firm of actuaries and are based on the latest formal valuation of the scheme as at 31

March 2008. A triennial review of pension fund contributions is due in 2011

The principal assumptions used by the actuary have been:

Long term expected rate of return on assets in the scheme:
- Equity investments
+ Bonds
- Property
- Cash

Mortality assumptions - longevity at 65 for current pensioners:
- Men
- Women

Mortality assumptions - longevity at 65 for future pensioners:
- Men
- Women

Expected return on assets

Rate of increase in salaries

Rate of increase in pensions

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities

Take-up of option to convert annual pension into retirement lump sum
Pre April 2009 service

Post April 2009 service

2010/11

7.5%
4.9%
5.5%
4.6%

20.8 years
24.1 years

22.3 years
25.7 years

7.0%
5.1%
2.8%
5.5%

2009/10

7.8%
5.0%
5.8%
4.8%

20.8 years
24,1 years

22.3 years
25.7 years

7.3%
5.3%
3.8%
5.5%

50.0%
75.0%

The Local Government Pension Scheme's assets consist of the following categories, by proportion of the

assets held:

- Equity investments
- Bonds

- Property

- Cash

History of Experience Gains and Losses

The actuarial gains identified as movements on the Pension Reserve in 2010-11 can be analysed into
the following categories, measured as a percentage of the assets or liabilities at 31st March 2011:

2007/08
Differences between expected and
actual return on assets: (10.1%)
Experience gains and losses on liabilities 0.0%
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25. NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Partnership's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
Credit risk - the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Partnership

Liquidity risk - the possibility that the Partnership might not have funds available to meet it's
commitments to make payments.

Re-financing risk - the possibility that the Partnership might be requiring to renew a financial
instrument on maturity at disadvantageaus interest rates of terms,

Market risk - the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Partnership as a result of changes in
such measures as interest rate movements.

Price risk - the possibility that fluctuations in equity prices has a significant impact on the value
of financial instruments held by the Authority. This is considered immaterial because the Authority
does not generally invest in equity shares.

Fareign exchange risk - the possibility that fluctuations in exchange rates could result in loss to the
Partnership.

Treasury Management is carried out on the Partnership's behalf by the City of Edinburgh Council.

The Council's overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial markets, and
implementing restrictions to minimise these risks. The Council complies with the CIPFA Prudential Code, and
has adopted the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of Practice.

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the
Partnership's customers.

To diversify the Partnership's counterparty exposure, the Partnership's surplus funds not immediately
required to meet expenditure commitments are held with the City of Edinburgh Council, and the Partnership
receives interest on revenue halances on these manies, Since the Partnership's surplus funds are held with the
City of Edinburgh Council, the counterparty default exposure is effectively nil.

The following analysis summarises the Partnership’s potential maximum exposure to credit risk, based on experience of
default assessed by the ratings agencies.

Historical
experience
adjusted for Estimated Estimated
market maximum maximum
Amount at Historical conditions exposure exposure
31st March experience 31st March 31st March 3i1st March
2011 of default 2011 2011 2010
£'000 % % £'000 £'000
(A} (B} () (AXC)
Local authorities 1,225 0.00% 0.00% #] 0

All Partnership invoices become due for payment on issue, and all trade debtors are overdue less than a month.

Collateral - During the reporting period the Partnership held no collateral as security.
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25. NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Liguidity risk

The Partnership is also required by statute to provide a balanced budget, which ensures sufficient monies are
raised to cover annual expenditure. There is therefore no significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance
to meet its commitments under financial instruments. The arrangement with the City of Edinburgh Council
ensures sufficient liquidity is available for the Partnership's day to day cash flow needs.

The Council manages the Partnership's liquidity position through the risk management procedures above
as well as through cash flow management procedures required by the Code of Practice.

Refinancing risk

The Partnership has only a small level of surplus funds and no long term debt. The refinancing risk to the
Partnership relates to managing the exposure to replacing financial instruments as they mature.

As such, the Partnership has no refinancing risk on its liabilities.

The Partnership has no investments with a maturity greater than one year.
Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Partnership is exposed to interest rate movements on its investments. Movements in interest rates
have a complex impact on an organisation, depending on how variable and fixed interest rates move
across differing financial instrument periods.

Forinstance, a rise in variable and fixed interest rates would have the following effects:

borrowings at variable rates - the interest expense charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services will rise;

borrowings at fixed rates - the fair value of the liahifities borrowings will fall;

investments at variable rates - the interest income credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services will rise; and

investments at fixed rates - the fair value of the assets will fall.

The Partnership currently has no borrowings. Changes in interest receivable on variable rate investments will
be posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services and affect the General Fund Balance.
However, all investments currently have a maturity of less than one year and the fair value has therefore
been approximated by the outstanding principal.

The Partnership's surplus funds are held with the City of Edinburgh Council.
The Council's Treasury Management Team continue to monitor market and forecast interest rates during the
year and adjust investment policies aceordingly,

According to the Council's strategy, if all interest rates had been 1% higher with all other variables held
constant, the financial effect would be:

31st March

2011

£'000

Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments (8)
Impact on Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services (8)

The impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being reversed,
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25. NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Price risk
The Partnership does not invest in equity shares

Foreign exchange risk

As at 31 March 2011, the Partnership had financial assets of £68,023 subject to foreign exchange risk.
The fareign exchange loss or gain an these financial assets cannot be determined until 2011/12, when
the Partnership is in receipt of the related grant income from the European Regional Development Fund.

The Partnership has no financial liabilities denominated in forefgn currencies.

26. SESTRAN Limited

The Partnership incorparated a wholly-owned limited company - SESTRAN Limited - on 22 January 2010.
The company has yet to commence the provision of services and there are no tra nsactions to record for

the purposes of preparing Group Accounts.

27. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS AND TRANSITION TO INTERNATIONAL EINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS)

The following tables explain the material differences between the amounts presented in the 2009/10

financial statements and the equivalent amounts presented in the 2010/11 financial statements.

Government Grants

Under the Code, grants and cantributions for capital schemes are recognised as income when they become

receivable. Previously, grants were held in a grants deferred account and recognised as income over the

life of the assets which they were used to fund.

As a consequence of adopting the accounting policy required by the code, the financial statements have

been amended as follows:

- The balance on the Government Grants Deferred Account at 31 March 2009 has been transferred to the
Capital Adjustment Account in the opening 1 April 2009 Balance Sheet (£132,000)

- 2005/10 charges for depreciation on non-current assets and on amortisation of intangible assets have been
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account {£45,000}
- Portions of government grants deferred were previously recognised as income in 2009/10 (£42,000); these have

been removed from the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement In the comparative figures

- Expenditure on Projects, previously disclosed net of Government Grants received, are now shown gross in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement {£570,000); this has been matched by a corresponding
increase in grant income (£570,000) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

This has resulted in the following changes being made to the 2009/10 financial statements:

Opening I April 2009 Balance Sheet

Government Grants Deferred Account
Capitat Adjustment Account

31 March 2010 Balance Sheet

Government Grants Deferred Account
Capital adjustment Account

2003/10 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Highways and Transport Services - net expenditura
Gevernment Grant
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SORP
Statements
£'000

(132)

(9)

IFRS revised
Statements
£'000

0

(141}

SORP
Statements
£'000

622
(350)

Adjustments
Made
£'000

132
(132)

Adjustments
Made
£'000

0
45

Adjustments
Made
£'000

612
{570)

IFRS revised
Statements
£'000

0

(141)

IFRS re-stated
Statements
£'000

v

(96)

IFRS re-stated
Statements
£'000

1,234

{920}
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27.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS AND TRANSITION TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (iFRS) (Contd.)

Figures in the financial statements were also adjusted to include accrued holiday leave to which the
employees are entitled to, but have not yet taken, as at the Balance Sheet date under 14519.

The adjustments for accrued holiday leave involved recognising these costs in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement and accruing for them in the Balance Sheet within Creditors.

The adjustments made for accrued holiday leave are not considered material.
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independent auditor’s report to the members of South East of Scotland Transport Partnership and
the Accounts Commission for Scotiand

f certify that | have audited the financial statements of South East of Scotland Transport Parinership for the
year ended 31 March 2011 under Part VIi of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973. The financial
statements comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, Balance Sheet, and Cash-Flow Statement and the related notes. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and as interpreted and adapted by the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2010/11 (the 2010/11 Code).

This report is made solely to ihe parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with Part VI of the Local
Government (Scotland) Act 1873 and for no other purpose. [n accordance with paragraph 123 of the Code
of Audit Practice approved by the Accounis Commission for Scotland, | do not undertake to have
responsibilities to mernbers or officers, in their individual capacities, or to third parties.

Respective responsibilities of the Treasurer and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities set out on page 10, the Treasurer is responsibile
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. My
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with appiicable
law and international Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) as required by the Code of Audit Practice
approved by the Accounts Commission for Scotland. Those standards require me to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasconable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are
approriate {o the body's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by theTreasurer; and the overall presentation of
the financial statements. In addition, | read all the financial and non-financial information in the financial
statements to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If | become aware of
any appareni material misstatements ar inconsistencies | consider the implications for my report.

Opinion
In my opinion the financial statements:
give a true and fair view in accordance with applicable law and the 2010/11 Code of the state of the affairs of

the South East of Scotland Transport Partnership as at 31 March 2011 and of the income and expenditure of
South East of Scotland Transport Partnership for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, as interpreted
and adapted by the 2010/11 Code; and

have been prepared in accordance with the reguirements of the Local Government {Scotland) Act 1973 and
the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003.
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Opinion on other prescribed matters
In my opinion:

* the part of the remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with The Local
Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 1985; and

e the information given in the Explanatory Foreword for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
Matters on which | am required to report by exception
I am required to report to you if, in my opinion:

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept; or

» the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records; or

» | have not received all the information and explanations | require for my audit; or

» the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with Delivering Good Governance in Local Government;
or

« there has been a failure to achieve a prescribed financial objective.

| have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

(NN

<H’e;;ussell BA CPFA

Senior Audit Manager
Audit Scofland

3" Floor, Oshorne House
1/56 Osbome Terrace
Edinburgh

EH12 5HG

2O September 2011
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Audit Scotland is a statutory body set up in April 2000 under the Public Finance and Accountability
(Scotland) Act 2000. It provides services to the Auditor General for Scotland and the Accounts
Commission. Together they ensure that the Scottish Government and public sector bodies in
Scotland are held to account for the proper, efficient and effective use of public funds
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Key Issues

Key Issues

Introduction

1. International Standard on Auditing 260 (ISA 260), Communication of audit matters to those
charged with governance, requires auditors to communicate matters relating to the audit of the
financial statements to those charged with governance of a body in sufficient time to enable
appropriate action.

2. ISA 260 requires us to highlight:

e the integrity and objectivity of the audit engagement lead and audit staff;

e the nature and scope of the audit, including any limitations, and the form of reports
expected to be made;

e expected modifications to the audit report;
e management representations requested by us;
e unadjusted misstatements (other than those which are clearly trifling);

e material weaknesses in the accounting and internal control systems identified during the
audit;

e views about the qualitative aspects of accounting practices and financial reporting; and

e  matters specifically required by other auditing standards to be communicated and any
other matter relevant to the audit.

3. This report sets out for the Board’s consideration the relevant matters arising from the audit of
the South East of Scotland Transport Partnership’s financial statements for 2010/11 that
require reporting under ISA 260. The contents should be brought to the attention of the
Treasurer, Partnership Director, and Chair of the Partnership Board so that they can consider
them before the Financial Statements are signed. An audit of the financial statements is not
designed to identify all matters that may be relevant to those charged with governance. The
report has been prepared for the use of South East of Scotland Transport Partnership and no
responsibility to any third party is accepted.

Status of the audit

4. Our work on the financial statements is substantially complete. Should any further matters
arise in concluding our work that requires to be reported under ISA 260, we will raise them
with the Treasurer.

Matters to be reported to those charged with governance

Conduct and scope of the audit

5. Information on the integrity and objectivity of the audit engagement lead and audit staff, and
the nature and scope of the audit were outlined in the Annual Audit Plan submitted to
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management in January 2011 and follows the requirements of the Code of Audit Practice
prepared by Audit Scotland in March 2007

Audit opinion & representations
6. My anticipated auditor’s report (appendix A) is unqualified.

7. The accounts have been adjusted to correct all identified financial misstatements arising
during the audit.

8.  As part of the completion of our audit, we seek written assurances from the Treasurer on
aspects of the accounts and judgements and estimates made. A draft letter of representation
under ISA 580 has been provided to the Treasurer. This should be returned and signed by
the Treasurer as soon as practicable and prior to the independent auditor’s opinion being
certified.

Accounting and internal control systems

9. No material weaknesses in the accounting and internal control systems were identified during
the audit which could adversely affect the ability to record, process, summarise and report
financial and other relevant data so as to result in a material misstatement in the accounts.

Matters arising

10. A number of changes were made to the draft accounts, none of which were significant. These
changes were largely typographical in nature or were presentational changes to comply more
fully with Code requirements

11. In my view, there are two issues that require to be brought to your attention regarding the
appropriateness of the Partnership’s accounting policies or accounting estimates and
judgements, the timing of transactions, the existence of any material unusual transactions or
the potential effect on the financial statements of any uncertainties.

12. Requisitions: As a regional transport partnership, SEStran is not allowed to make a surplus
or deficit and any unspent requisitions should be repaid to councils. The partnership has
approved the carry forward £302,000 of unspent council requisitions from the previous five
years within trade payables for the real time bus passenger information project (RTPI). In
addition, during 2010/11 the Partnership Board agreed to transfer a further £100,000 to the
RTPI project from an underspend on the Kirknewton level crossing project. Funding for this
project was originally provided by the Scottish Government as part of the Partnership's
general capital grant. The RTPI project reflects a commitment on behalf of the partnership to
third parties.

We have therefore asked the Treasurer for formal assurance, in the letter of representation,
that these balances are properly stated, reflect commitments and have been agreed with the
relevant parties.

South East of Scotland Transport Partnership Page 3
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13.

Non current assets: The financial statements include £277,000 assets under construction in
relation to the real time bus passenger information project. It is unclear at this stage who will
actually own and maintain these assets once the project is completed. We have therefore
asked the Treasurer for formal assurance that the ownership and maintenance of these assets
will be clarified on completion of the project.

Outstanding Information

14.

Letter of Representation: The formal Letter of Representation is required prior to the
auditor’s certification of the financial statements.

Acknowledgements

15.

16.

| would like to express my thanks to the staff of the South East of Scotland Transport
Partnership and City of Edinburgh Council for their help and assistance during the audit of this
year’s financial statements which has enabled me to certify the financial statements by the
Controller of Audit’s target date.

As this is the final year of the appointment of the current audit team, we would like to express
our appreciation of the courtesy and co-operation we have received from all officers and
directors, throughout the appointment

Helen Russell BA CPFA

Senior Audit Manager
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Appendix A

Proposed Independent Auditor's Report

Independent auditor’s report to the members of South East of Scotland Transport
Partnership and the Accounts Commission for Scotland

| certify that | have audited the financial statements of South East Scotland Transport
Partnership for the year ended 31 March 2011 under Part VIl of the Local Government
(Scotland) Act 1973. The financial statements comprise the Movement in Reserves
Statement, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, Balance Sheet, and
Cash-Flow Statement and the related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and as interpreted and adapted by the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2010/11 (the 2010/11 Code).

This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with Part VIl of
the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and for no other purpose. In accordance with
paragraph 123 of the Code of Audit Practice approved by the Accounts Commission for
Scotland, | do not undertake to have responsibilities to members or officers, in their individual
capacities, or to third parties.

Respective responsibilities of the Treasurer and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities set out on page 10, the Treasurer
is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view. My responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK
and Ireland) as required by the Code of Audit Practice approved by the Accounts Commission
for Scotland. Those standards require me to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s
Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the body’s circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the Treasurer; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In
addition, | read all the financial and non-financial information in the financial statements to
identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If | become aware of
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any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies | consider the implications for my
report.

Opinion on financial statements

In my opinion the financial statements:

give a true and fair view in accordance with applicable law and the 2010/11 Code of the
state of the affairs of the South East of Scotland Transport Partnership as at 31 March
2011 and of the income and expenditure of the South East of Scotland Transport
Partnership for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union, as interpreted and adapted by the 2010/11 Code; and

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government
(Scotland) Act 1973 and the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003.

Opinion on other prescribed matters

In my opinion:

the part of the remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 1985; and

the information given in the Explanatory Foreword for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which | am required to report by exception

| am required to report to you if, in my opinion:

adequate accounting records have not been kept; or

the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records; or

I have not received all the information and explanations | require for my audit; or

the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with Delivering Good Governance in
Local Government; or

there has been a failure to achieve a prescribed financial objective.

I have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Page 6
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Helen Russell BA CPFA
Senior Audit Manager
Audit Scotland

3rd Floor, Osborne House
1/5 Osborne Terrace
Edinburgh

EH12 5HG

September 2011
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South East of Scotland
Transport Partnership

Mrs Helen Russell

Senior Audit Manager

Audit Scotland

Osbome House

1/5 Osborne Terrace

EDINBURGH

EH12 5HG 20 September 2011

Dear Mrs Russell

2010/11 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the
South East of Scotland Transport Partnership for the year ended 31 March 2011 for the purpose of
expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the South East of Scotland Transport Partnership as at 31 March 2011 and its income and
expenditure for the year then ended.

| confirm to the best of my knowledge and belief, and having made appropriate enquiries of the
Partnership Director and Senior Management Team, the following representations:

Legality of Financial Transactions

1. The financial transactions of the South East of Scotland Transport Partnership are in
accordance with the relevant legislation and regulations governing its activities. All known or
possible non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when
preparing financial statements have been disclosed to you, together with the actual or
contingent consequences which may arise.

Accounting Policies

2, All material accounting policies adopted are as shown in Note 1 - Statement of Accounting
Policies. The continuing appropriateness of the Partnership’s accounting policies and
estimation techniques has been reviewed since the introduction of IAS 8 (Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors), having regard to the concepts and qualitative
characteristics set out in the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2010/11 (“the Code”). Consequently, these financial statements, including the
comparative figures, have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

3. All material adjustments have been made. There are no changes in estimation techniques
which should be disclosed due to their having a material impact on the accounting disclosures.

4. | have assessed the Partnership’s ability to carry on as a going concern and there are no
material uncertainties that have arisen as a result.



10.

14.

15.

Assets

General

The assets shown in the books and accounts at 31 March 2011 were owned by the South East
of Scotland Transport Partnership. Assets under construction reflect purchases to date for the
real time bus transport information project which is currently being rolled out across the region.
Final ownership and responsibility for these assets will be determined following completion of
the project.

Non - Current Assets

For the year ended 31 March 2011, the Partnership did not own or mortgage any properties
and did not hold any other non-current assets under finance leases.

All non-current assets are appropriately classified. The net book amount in the balance sheet
was arrived at:

(i) after taking into account all material capital expenditure on additions thereto but not
expenditure properly chargeable to revenue

(i) after deducting the cost and accumulated depreciation relating to items sold or
scrapped

(iii) after providing for depreciation and obsolescence on bases and at rates calculated to

reduce the net book value of each asset to its estimated residual value by the end of its
probable useful life.

The Authority has identified and disclosed all intangible assets as defined by the Code and
IAS 38.

Prepayments

All prepayments have been fully provided for in the books of account.

Other Current Assets

On realisation in the ordinary course of South East of Scotland Transport Partnership business
the other current assets in the balance sheet are expected, in my opinion, to produce at least
the amounts at which they are stated. In particular adequate provision has, in my opinion,
been made against all amounts owing which are known or may be expected to be
irrecoverable.

Liabilities

General

All liabilities have been provided for in the books of account, including the liability for all
purchases to which title has passed prior to 31 March 2011.

Contingent Liabilities

There are no significant contingent liabilities arising either under formal agreements or through
informal undertakings requiring disclosure in the accounts.



16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21

22.

23.

Provisions

Provisions have been made in the accounts for all material liabilities which have resulted, or
may be expected to result, by legal action or otherwise, from events which had occurred by the
balance sheet date and of which the South East of Scotland Transport Partnership could
reasonably be expected to be aware.

Trade payables

Trade payables include balances retained by the Partnership for the real time bus passenger
travel information project. The constituent authorities have agreed to the retained balances
being utilised in this manner. The funds have been approved for specific real time bus
information projects.

SESTran Ltd

There were no transactions during the financial year to 31 March 2011 and since the Balance
sheet date.

Other Matters

Expenditure on the purchase of furniture, office equipment and computer equipment and
software below the value of £10,000 has been charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. ltems costing more than £10,000 have been treated as non - current
assefis.

Except as disclosed in the financial statements, the resuits for the period were not materially
affected by

(i) transactions of a sort not usually undertaken by the South East of Scotland Transport
Partnership

(i) circumstances of an exceptional or non-recurrent nature

it} charges or credits relating fo prior periods

(iv) any change in the basis of accounting.

All related party transactions that require disclosure in order to comply with the requirements
of IAS 24 (Related Party Disclosures) have been identified and disclosed in the Notes to the
Financial Statements in accordance with the Code.

Financial Instruments

The information disclosed in note 25 of the financial statements (financial instruments) has
been based on information supplied by the City of Edinburgh Treasury and Banking Section. |
have assessed the information provided and | am satisfied that the accounting, presentation
and disclosure of this note are properly stated and are in compliance with the Code

requirements

I confirm that all ransaction costs in respect of financial instruments were immaterial and were
written off to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as incurred.
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23.

24,

25.

28.

27.

28.

29.

Corporate Governance

I acknowledge, as the officer with responsibility for the proper administration of the
Partnership's financial affairs under section 95 of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973,
my responsibility for the systems for intemal control. 1 confirm that | have reviewed the
effectiveness of the systems for internal control and that the disclosures | have made are in
accordance with relevant guidance.

| acknowledge that it is the responsibility of the Parinership to prevent and detect fraud and
other irregularity. | have considered the risk that the financial statements may be materially
misstated as a result of fraud. | have disclosed to the auditor the results of this review,
including any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the financial statements. There
have been no irregularities involving management or employees who have a significant rale in
internal control or that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

General

| acknowledge my responsibility, and that of the Partnership, for the financial statements. All
the accounting records requested have been made available to you for the purposes of your
audit. All material agreements and transactions undertaken by the South East of Scotland
Transport Partnership have been properly reflected in the financial statements. All other
records and information have been made available to you, including minutes of all Partnership
and other meetings.

Disclosure has been made in the financial statements of all matters necessary for them to
provide a true and fair view of the transactions and state of affairs of South East of Scotland
Transport Partnership for the year ended 31 March 2011.

The information given in the Foreword to the financial statements represents a balanced
picture of South East of Scotland Transport Partnership and is consistent with the financial
statements.

Events Subsequent to the Date of the Balance Sheet

There have been no material events since the date of the balance sheet which necessitate
revision of the figures in the financial statements or notes thereto including contingent assets
and Habilities.

Since the date of the balance sheet no events or transactions have occurred which, though
properly excluded from the accounts, are of such importance that they should be brought to
your notice.

Yours sincerely

o Cortl”

Karen Kelly
Treasurer
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